
Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764837 
e-mail: amandataylor@sholland.gov.uk

DECISION 
NOTICE
NOTICE OF DECISION MADE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
DECISION: Lawton 6.15

(To be made available at the main offices of the Council and sent to all members of the 
Council within 3 working days of the decision.)

The Council’s Constitution (Standing Order 27 – Recording of Executive Decisions; Part 3
Section D4 – Delegations to Cabinet members; and Part 4 D Access to Information
Procedure Rules) requires that when any decision is made by an individual Portfolio
Holder a record of the decision, including a statement of the reasons for it and any
alternative options considered and rejected, must be prepared and published normally
within 3 working days.

In accordance with this requirement notice is hereby given that Councillor C J Lawton, 
being the Portfolio Holder for Housing, made the decision detailed below on Friday 11 
March 2016.  This decision is not a key decision. 

This notice is published on Monday 14 March 2016.

In accordance with the terms of the Constitution the decision detailed below will come into
force, and may then be implemented, on Tuesday 22 March 2016 (i.e. following the
expiry of 5 working days following the date of publication of this notice) unless during that
period a notice, signed by at least one Councillor and complying with the Council’s
Constitution (Part 3 Section D – Overview and Scrutiny (including Call-In Procedures)), is
served on the Executive Manager Governance requesting that the decision be called-in
and Executive Manager Governance approves the request for call-in. (The call-in period
expires at 5pm on the 5th working day following publication of this notice, or 4.30pm if the
5th working day is a Friday.)

For office use :
Notice and report e-
mailed to EMT, 
Democratic 
Services, Comms 
Team and Report 
Author , on 
14.03.16

Public Document Pack



Matter to which decision relates

Land at Balmoral Avenue, Spalding – To consider a request to grant a temporary licence 
and a permanent easement across an area of Council owned land (report of the Executive 
Director Place enclosed).  

DECISION (IF URGENT PROVIDE REASONS)

1. That a temporary licence be granted in the first instance to Lincolnshire County 
Council across an area of Council owned land off Balmoral Avenue, Spalding, for the 
provision of a temporary access track to enable building works to be carried out on 
Lincolnshire County Council’s land. The licence to be granted for the sum of £20 per 
week;

2. That notice of the intended easement be advertised as required by legislation and 
that the Housing Landlord Manager, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Housing, give due consideration to any consultation responses;

3. That, once the works have been completed, and subject to no objections being 
received to the public notice set out at (2) above which cannot be overcome, an 
easement be granted for the benefit of the Lincolnshire County Council owned land in 
the sum of £6,345;

4. That Lincolnshire County Council be responsible for reimbursing the Council’s legal, 
valuation and public notice fees whether or not the matter proceeds to completion; 
and

5. That the Housing Landlord Manager be authorised, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Housing, to determine any other matters arising.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

Do nothing.  This option would mean that Lincolnshire County Council could not provide 
temporary access to enable the construction work at the school to take place. This option 
was not recommended.



REASON OR REASONS FOR THE DECISION

1) To enable the planned expansion of the Spalding Parish CE Day School to take 
place;

2) To enable a permanent footpath to be provided to the school; and

3) To generate a receipt to the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

Conflicts of interest declared by an executive member, relating to the decision, and 
any dispensations granted

None.

R E P O R T

1 Lawton 6.15 - Land at Balmoral Avenue, Spalding - To consider a 
request to grant a temporary licence and a permanent easement across 
an area of Council owned land.  (Report of the Executive Director Place 
enclosed.)

(Pages 
1 - 6)



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Place

To: Portfolio Holder for Housing 
(Councillor C Lawton)

(Author: Richard Scorthorne, Housing Landlord Manager)

Subject: Land at Balmoral Avenue, Spalding

Purpose: To consider a request to grant a temporary licence and a permanent 
easement across an area of Council owned land

Recommendations: 

1. That a temporary licence be granted in the first instance to Lincolnshire County Council across 
an area of Council owned land off Balmoral Avenue, Spalding, for the provision of a temporary 
access track to enable building works to be carried out on Lincolnshire County Council’s land. 
The licence to be granted for the sum of £20 per week;

2. That notice of the intended easement be advertised as required by legislation and that the 
Housing Landlord Manager, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing, give due 
consideration to any consultation responses;

3. That, once the works have been completed, and subject to no objections being received to the 
public notice set out at (2) above which cannot be overcome, an easement be granted for the 
benefit of the Lincolnshire County Council owned land in the sum of £6,345;

4. That Lincolnshire County Council be responsible for reimbursing the Council’s legal, valuation 
and public notice fees whether or not the matter proceeds to completion; and

5. That the Housing Landlord Manager be authorised, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Housing, to determine any other matters arising.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) own and operate the Spalding Parish CE Day School on 
Clay Lake, Spalding. In September 2015, LCC submitted a planning application (ref: H16-
0898-15). The application form included details of the proposal as follows:

“Phased expansion of the existing primary school from 2FE to 3FE to meet a basic need 
identified in the Spalding area for primary age pupil places. This includes 6 teaching 
classrooms, pupil WCs, a library space, 3 small group rooms, staff space and WCs, a MI 
room, a hall extension with table/chair stores, kitchen and associated facilities and 
circulation space as required.”

1.2 Planning permission for this work was granted on 19 October 2015.

1.3 A further planning application was submitted (ref: H16-1135-15) by LCC in December 2015, 
with the following proposal:

“Proposed permanent pedestrian access route and temporary access for contractors’ 
vehicles during construction period which will be made permanent upon completion of 
construction works.”

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



1.4 This planning application affects an area of SHDC owned open space land (Housing land, 
held in the Housing Revenue Account) off Balmoral Avenue, Spalding. LCC served the 
required notice on SHDC, as landowner, and planning permission was granted on 20 
January 2016. On completion, the footpath would provide a permanent means of 
pedestrian access to the school across the open space land at Balmoral Avenue, Spalding.

1.5 A plan of SHDC’s land is attached in Appendix A to this report.

1.6 Informal discussions have taken place with LCC about the proposals which would affect the 
SHDC owned land. A plan showing those proposals is attached as Appendix B to this 
report.

1.7 LCC have advised that they anticipate the construction work starting in May 2016 and 
taking approximately 12 to 18 months to complete. During that time, they would provide 2m 
high hoarding to both sides of the track for health and safety purposes. Discussions have 
taken place with the Parks and Grounds Inspector to establish if this would create any 
issues. As a consequence, informal agreement has been reached for gates to be provided 
to enable the Parks and Grounds team to continue to maintain the open space land during 
the construction works. 

1.8 In addition, LCC have raised concerns about a set of swings adjacent to the proposed 
track, and asked if they could remove the swings given their proximity to the proposed 
access track. Following discussion, it has been informally agreed that LCC would prohibit 
entry to and protect the swings and soft play surfacing during the construction work rather 
than removing them.

1.9 A valuation of LCC’s proposals which affect SHDC’s land has been obtained, and provides 
the following:

 Market rental for the granting of a temporary licence for the access track = £20.00 per 
week

 Market rental for the permanent easement for the footpath = £315.00 per week, or a 
commuted sum of £6,345.00

1.10 LCC have informally agreed the valuation figures provided, and have paid the Council’s 
valuation fees.

1.11 Where an easement is intended to be granted over open space land, the Council is unable 
to do so without giving notice of their intention in a local paper for 2 consecutive weeks. Any 
comments received during that consultation process must be considered before a decision 
to grant the easement (or not) over the land can be made. This is reflected within the 
recommendations to this report.

1.12 Consultation about this proposal has been carried out with ward members, the Portfolio 
Holder and relevant officers. No comments were received.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Option 1 – Do Nothing (not recommended)

2.1.1 This option would mean that LCC could not provide temporary access to enable the 
construction work at the school to take place. This option is not recommended.

2.2 Option 2 – To grant the temporary licence and permanent easement (recommended)

2.2.1 The planned expansion of the Spalding Parish CE Day School is intended to meet a need 
within Spalding for primary school age pupils. The granting of the temporary licence would 
enable the construction works to take place, and the granting of the permanent easement 
would enable a pedestrian access to be created for the school. It is not considered that the 

Page 2



granting of the easement would compromise use of the Council’s open space land, so this 
option is recommended.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To enable the planned expansion of the Spalding Parish CE Day School to take place.

3.2 To enable a permanent footpath to be provided to the school.

3.3 To generate a receipt to the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 To enable the planned expansion of the Spalding Parish CE Day School to take place, and 
a permanent footpath to be provided to the school.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 The proposal will provide a means of pedestrian access to the Spalding Parish CE Day 
School from Balmoral Avenue, and this may encourage walking to and from the school as 
opposed to travel by vehicles. It is the opinion of the report author that there are no 
implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 The General Housing Consents 2013 permit a local authority to grant an easement in or 
over land held for the purposes of Part II Housing Act 1985, for a consideration determined 
by the authority. 

5.2.2 Where the easement is intended to be granted over open space land, the Council is unable 
to do so without giving notice of their intention in a local paper for 2 consecutive weeks. Any 
comments received during that consultation process must be considered before a decision 
to grant the easement (or not) over the land can be made. This is reflected within the 
recommendations to this report.

5.2.3 This is a matter that is delegated to the Portfolio Holder under the Council’s Constitution.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 The nature of this matter means it will involve some contractual work and implications 
including the applicant being required to pay the Council’s legal and valuation fees. 

5.4 Financial 

5.4.1 The applicant, Lincolnshire County Council, will be responsible for reimbursing the 
Council’s legal, valuation and public notice fees whether or not the matter proceeds to 
completion.

5.4.2 If approved, the granting of the temporary licence would generate a receipt of £20 per week 
over a 12-18 month period (billing will be arranged in the most efficient way for the Council). 
In addition, the commuted sum payable for the granting of the permanent easement would 
generate a receipt to the HRA of £6,345.

Page 3



5.5 Risk Management 

5.5.1 The granting of the temporary licence would mean that a small area of the open space, 
including a swing set, would become inaccessible to the public during the construction 
works, the duration of which is estimated to be 12 to 18 months. Whilst the duration of the 
works is relatively short, this does present a risk of complaints by the wider public who may 
wish to use these facilities.

5.5.2 The granting of the permanent easement would provide a permanent footpath for 
pedestrian access to the school across the open space land. The open space land would 
be fully accessible to the public once the footpath is in place and operational, so any risks 
associated with this are considered to be minimal.

5.5 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.6.1 Consultation has been carried out with ward members, the Portfolio Holder and relevant 
officers. No comments were received.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 This report and its recommendations affect the Spalding St Mary’s ward only.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 LCC – Lincolnshire County Council

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Scorthorne – Housing Landlord Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764671
Email: rscorthorne@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A SHDC owned land
Appendix B LCC proposals

Page 4

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


Appendix A – SHDC owned land

SHDC owned land (edged red)

P
age 5



Appendix B – LCC proposals

P
age 6


	Agenda
	1 Lawton 6.15 - Land at Balmoral Avenue, Spalding

